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The Rambler Writes of Old Maryland Churches

An Early Presbyterian Church on Cabin John—A Mention of Poto-
mac Church and the People Who Worshiped There—News-

paper Articles That Disagree—Some Facts About Roads.

N the third narrative of the series

having for their text or theme

the country through which FPer-

simmon Tree lane runs the Ham-
bler wrote a few paragraphs about
Potomnac Church. It i8 a4 Methodist
church and the small atructure, in Its
plain and simple architecture, no
doubt reflects the plain and simple re-
Mglous fiith of the good men and the
better women who gather there on
Sunday and on other days Lo gend up
their prayers and songs to the throne
of grace. As the Rambler so fur un-
derstands the history of this place,
the little church has been standing
there pince 1850, and perhaps nobody
need be reminded that geventy yeare
is guite a long stretch of Lime as we
MensuUre years In Ameries.

A single year brings go  many
changes that in ecomputing the
change that has taken place since the
plain little church was dedicated to
the service of God and man it might
be fairer to multiply its years not by
keventy, but by the square of sev-
enty. And for thirty before
1860 a plain little frame church &tood
where thia little church stands now.
It also wae a4 Methodist house of wor-
ghip, That carries us back to 1820
And for many years before 1820, but
the exact number the Rambler is not
able to determine, another little
church stood there. That was a Pres-
byterian church. The date of ils
foundation was perhaps some Lime
about 1723, and that church was
identified with early Preshyierians in
the region of Washington,

*
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The Presbyterian church was burn-
ol down in 1820, or the year before,
apd it does not seem probable that it
could have been the firet church on
this eite, because a frame church is
not apt to endure within about three
years of a ventury, and a4 congrega-
tion founded in 1728 or thereabouls
probably oulgrew or became other-
wise dissatisfied with its church home
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before the papsage of ninety-geven
years. So it is likely that more than
three churches have stood at this
piace

The burying ground has been in
use Bince the first church was butlt

and it is very easy for the reuder to
think how richly this God'e acre is
impregnated with the ashes of men
who culled thie part of the country
their home. The Rambler has no
means of knowing how many men,
women and children who looked upon
and loved the msame hitls, valleys,
brooks and rivere that we do have
been gathered at last inte the small

oak-grown space about this litlle
church. 1t must give even to the
rudest® man who strays Lhat way a

feeling of reverence lo reflect on Lhe
coyntless good, friendly and pious
thoughts or emotions that have been
felt and expressed where Lhis plain
little frame church stands, 1t s
curious to speculate on how much in-

fiuence for good this plain little
church and the other plain little
churches that previously occupled
this place have exercised on man.
Descendants of people who have

kmelt and bowed their headg in prayer
in this place are scattered all over
the world and must be especially
pumercus in ithe District of Colum-
bia and the nearby sections of Mary-
lamd and Virginia.

This chureh stands back from that
main road, called the Falls road. which
leads from Rockville to Great Falls.
That it is one of the old roads of the
Washington neighborhood is proved
by the date of the building of the first
church, and it is very likely that it
was 2 much used road when thalt
church was bullt. Our ancestors in
picking out a site for a church natur-
ally chose a central one. They set
up this church near the center of
population or near the center of the
Presbyterian population. which is
wvery much the aame thing. for that
part of Montgomery county in the
early eighteenth century was sirong-
ly Presbyterian. 1t is fair to assume
that the 'road leading through this
part of the country was among the
eurly roads in this vicinity., XNo
doubt the Rambler could take a day
off from his regular work and by dig-
ging into acts of the Maryland as-
sembly year after yeir could find the
exact date on which the construction
of this road was authorized, and if
there isa any vehemeni
his readers for that particular piece
of information he will look it up.

This road, because it passes through
a section of country now thickly set-
tled with prosperous people, has been
highly improved, or it may be that the
pection (s thickly w»ettled by proe-
percus people becaume the road has
t=en highly improved. At any rate,
because it ig a good road and because
of the scenic and historic interest of
the country through which it passes,
It is now one of the important auto-
mobile roads Iin the Washington re-
gion. Automobiler rush along it at
Ereat speed und frequent intervals,
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The Rambler dees nat

with the idea that

compliment (o the

mention this
I peaying any
road. Perhaps

he

demand from -

quite the reverse, For as a rule
automobile road is lees interesting
and lees umeful for purposes of ram-
bling than an ox-eart road, a saddle-
horee road or a buggy road. Auto-
mobhiles are very disturbing to hum-
bie pedestrians, and it only now
and then that one is kind enough to
Rtop and give a man a lift, l-‘iyl the
Rambler is not making any complaint,

an

is

because in walking along this road
he has been pretty lucky in getting
lifts, Never yvet has the Rambler been

50 unappreoiative affected as to
84y, when asked to take a rjide: “No,

thank you; 1 am walking for health

and profit.” The main disappointment
which the Rambler experiences to-
wanl an automobile road Ir that s=o
many machines go by without g¢top-
ping, But, ‘and however, though
walking is hard work, it is said 1o
he quite healthy,

*
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A number of years ago, in writing

ufl the Soldiers’ Home grounds and
the tombs of Rev. Iir. Hrackenridge
and his wife, Eleanor, daughter of
James White, whoee farm is now the
southern part of the home grounds,
the Rambler said:

Rev, Dr. Brackenrbdge was the Bret Pres
byterinn minister to hold  serviee in Wash-
ington city.  That was In 178, The tombs

of Dr. Brackeoridge and bis wife are in the
Roldiers' Home grounds pot far from he
little cotiage which was culied Hurewood and

which was the summer howe of W. W, {‘or-
voran, That Jund passed 1o Mr, Corcorsn in
1852 from  the Brackenrkdge family. Lhr,

Brackenridge died in 1844, at the age of sey
coty five years. His wife died in 1817, ut the
age of Bfty-two, ldtile of the carly listory
of Dr. Brackenridge 15 koewn, though
cause of the puame and eundry ofher facis be

Wun prebably s nulive of Virginla sod wes
ny deobt familiar with this sectbon long be-
Tore Il became the weat of governmeot, “This
vus quite @ Presbyterian  neighberiood long
before the American revolation, Preshyierian
churches having been ertablished on e Busi-
«rn braoch near Bladensburg aud in the Cabin

dulim nelghborhood.  The Bladensburg congre-
gution was established in 1710, and the pusior
there until 1752 was the Hev, Hugh Conn,

In that “ramble” in which mention
was first made of 'otomac Church the
Rambler pointed out that it slands on
4 knoll in a greve of old oak trees
and that around it are many old
tombs carved with the names of enrly

settlers in that part of Montgomery
county. On the west edge of the
cemetery is a tall and broad slab in-
scribed: “Presbyterian Church 1716
Grammar School 1760—Placed by Ju-
net Montlgomery Chapler, Daughters
of the American Hevolution 1816."
Among the tombatones I one in-
seribed: “In memory of the Rev,
James Hunt, who departed thisz life

the 2d of June, 1793, aged =ixty-one
vears. He was sc¢t apart 1o the work
uf the minisiry early in life, in which
he continued till death, laboring for
the good of souls and for the glory of
his Heavenly Master.”

Beside this tomb is one inscribed:
“In memory of Mrs. Ruth Hunt, wife
to the Rev, James Junt, deceaged. who
deparied this life the 171th of May,
17906, in the sixty-geventh veur of her
uge, 8Bhe early in life devoted her-
#elf to the gervice of religion and cone.
tinued through a long life a
example of Christian piety. She was
W woman of sorrows and scguainted
with grief, being the greater part of

birig ht

:

01D “CARIN"” ON THE ROAD,

her days the s=ubject of affiction
which refined her as fire for dwelling
in the mansions of the Holy and the
Blessed."

It will be observed that the memo-
rial marker in the churchyard is in-
scribed “Presbyterian Chureh 1716."
There is a discrepancy in dates which
the Rambler cannot now harmonize,
In the Rockville newspaper in Oclo-
ber, 1916, war published ithe following
little article, written and signed by
the chairman of the historic commit-

tee of Janel Monigomery Chapter,
D. A. R.;
On Hunday, October S, at 2:30 pm., fthe

Jaurt Moutgomery Clapter, . A, R, expects
te celebrate the 200th anuniversary of Presby-
feriaulem by unveiling a marker on the site of
the first Presbyterian Chureh in Moulgomery
eouuly, loealed ail Polomac,

The old church wax formeriy knowo as the
Cuptaio Juhn's Choreh' and also us *'the Pres-
byterinn Meeting House,'" and was orgapizedl
in 1716 by the Rev, Hogh (‘onn of Ireland, »
member of the Donegal Preshytery, who also
nvreached at Bladensburg or Patuxent Chureh,
vrgapized in 1704,

The Bret grammar school in the county waw
wearby. Here William Wirt, Attorney tienersl
of the United Btates, und mapy other distin-
gulklied mea were educated by Hev. James
Hunt, who onducted the school and filled the

palpits  of  Patuxent and  Captain John's
churches, and whose body les by that of lis
wife in the old cliurchyard a1t Polomae. The

lombetones are in good condition, bearing quaiot
inseripitione,

The chapter hns & good program of distin
kulshed speakers and Ane music. One ulerenl-
ing featore of the program will be the selinal
chlldren  of Potowmse standiog the  loet
grnves, forming & living United S atos tag and
singiog "Ameriea,”’ led by ‘he bun?,

The chapter historinn will read thie history
of the church collected for the chiaptor, oud the
marker will be  unveiled descendanis of
Rev, Jobn Orme aud Rev, Tomes Mo, pastors
of the cuurch and descenta i's of Ninion leall,
first vlder,

Kevkville, Daruegtown, Bethesda, Nealsville
und Hermon, together with Methodist ¢hurches
which are the ontgrowth of this motlier chursh,
are requested by the chapter to e present und
foin iu singing *'Coromation’ and “Doxology,'"
Il by tle band, and bopes sre entertained
that this union service will give new Impetos
to Christing pairiotiem wud  education
wuniry,

hy

Iy
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The date of the building of 4 Pres-
byterian church near Upper Marlboro,
the county seat of Prince Licorges
county, wae 1704, The decd to the
land, given by Ninian Beall, is on rec-
ord. Whether that was the first
Presbyterien church in that localjvy
is not known, but it probubly was not,
hecause Presbyterians were settled in
that part of Maryland in the latier
vears of the meventeenth century, and
where Preshyterians lived there was
Presbyterian worship, and it is Guite
likely that as soon as a rongregation
wag formed, a church was built, Ip
the deed of 1704 there are named sjx-
teen trustees of the church, and the
pagtor's name is given as Hev., Na-
thaniel Taylor. Rev. J. William Mec-
Ilvain, whosge work on "Early Presby-
terianism in Maryland” was publish-
ed as one of the Johns Hopkinsg' stud-
les in higtory and political science,
“aye that jt is not known whether Na-
thaniel Taylor war an Englishman or
a Scotchman, “but that he was an
educated man is shown by his library

of 700 volumes of fine literature.” He
died in 1710,

Mr., Mellvain gives a pood deal of
space W the PMatuxent or Marlboro
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church of 1704, and then passes to the
Eastern Branch or Bladensburg
church, concerning which he seems to
have been able to collect very few
facts. But he does give the date of
the establishment of the Bladensburg
church as the year 1719. Then, oppo-
site that statement and on the margin
of the page some person has written
in peneil and in a careful hand:
“Wrong, 1744.” The Preshyterian
population, like the Episcopalian and
Catholi¢ populations, expanded north-
ward in Maryland, and if the Patux-
ent church was built in 1704, and the
Eastern Branch «church in 1719, it
would seem a little strange that the
Cabin John church was built in 17186,
It is & perplexing matier, The erec-
tion of a church building and the for-
mation of a congregation are often
confused, -

There waw unually a congregation
before there was a church and it is
quite likely that Preshyterians in the
Cabin John country met in private
homes for worship before they huilt
4 church, The Rambler is going to
try 1o work this out at some other
time.

In the matter of the marker on the
site of the early Presbyterian church
on Cabin John the Rambler turng to
the following, which was published in
The Star in Ociober, 1916:

A menorial stone marking the site of Qld
Cabin  Jobn Presbyterian Chureh o Cabin
John  creek  about  three  miles  west  of
Bethesda (s to be dedicated {(omorrow by
Janet Montgomery Chapter, D. A. R., of Mont-
gomery county. Md. Nething now remaine
of the murdent church, the site haviog been
hought nearly a century ago by the Metho-
dist devominstion amd a Methodist Church
now wstands near where the original Presby-
terinn edifice stood. The graves of Hev, James
Hunt, the first pastor of the church, amd hLis

. wife are the xole remaining indications of the

former ownership.

Cabin Johs Presbyterian Church, called in
the original records Captain John Clhurch, was
founded nbont 1723, when Rev, John Orme,
pastor of the Patuxent Preshyterian Church at
Upper Marlborongh, was sent 1o predch in
whet i pnow the Heibesds section of Mary-
Iand, The firel cougregation wan composed
mainly of Scoteh metilers of whom the Magru.
der and other families of Reoteh pames are
descendants.

The first regular pastior of the new chureh
of whom definite records exist was Hev. Mr.
Hunt, whose grave, marked by a lieadstone,
is 1 the old burying groumd with that, of his
wife. Rev, Mr, Hun! was & sative of Hanover
vounty, Va., apd In 1762 was n wiember of the
Hanover Presbytery. He was a companion In
youth of Fatrick Hewry, both being under the
ministerlal charge of Rev. Kamuel Davies,
fosnder of the Fresbyterian chwreh in that
part of Virginia and later president of Prinee-
fon College, wow 1he University of Princeton,
1t war Rev, Mr, Davies who, in speaking be-
fore King George 111 of Eugland o the Interest
of the colonists, amd being iuterrupled by rhe
king, who expressed amazement at the elo
guence of the speaker, reboked the monarch
with these words:

"When the King of Kings speakn let the
kings of the earth keep sibence.'*

Rev. Mr. Hunt died June 2, 1797, according
to ithe ipscription on the headstone at his
grave, His wuccessor was Hev, Adam Free.
nan, whe died In 1800, Rery. Dr. Conrad
Speece of Virginia suceeeded My, Freemun,
remaining until 1800, wihen he retursed to ¥ir-
ginin,  He wan wucceeded by Hev. Namuye)
Martin, who in turn was succeeded by Mev, J.
T, Ruswell,

The old church burned (u 1820 and ihe site
was sold te (he Methiodier cougregation, th,
Presbyterians  reserving only e burying
Ereand. The Cabln John—wr, as it still eppenr-
ed in the records, the Captain John—Preshy
terian congregation bullt chureh within o
hundred yards of Uie site ol the  present

- slxty-one veurs.

church on the Rockville pike. A few yeurs
Inter thi= church waws also burned and in 1880
the present church was bullt, At that time
Itev, John Mines, who had come to the church
ax pastor in 1522, and Rev. Randolph Smith,
vo-pastor, served the church and the FPresbhy-
tevian chureh at Montgomery County Court
Hounse, now Hockville, which was also a8 mia-
sien of the original Cabin John Chureh, Rev,
Mr. 8mith was followed in 1838 by Rev, E. H.
{‘ompton. who served until 1875, when he was
succeeded hy the present paxtor, Kev, Parke
P. Flournoy, who has served  continuously
since that year,
*
® ¥

The Rambler is perplexed by the
number of discrepancies in the twao
s&lories which he has secured, one from
the Rockville paper and the other
from The Btar. That in the Rockville
paper was written by the historian of
Janet Montgomery Chapler and that
in The Star was written by a reporter
who evidently got some of his facta
from a member of Lhe congregation
of Bethesda PPresbyterian Church on
Lhe Rockvllle pike. The first account
says that the Cabin John Church was
organized in 1716 by the Rev. Hugh
Conn, who also preached at Bladens-
burg or Patuxent Church, organized In
1704. The Patuxent Church was at
Marlboro and the Bladengburg Church
was on the Eastern Branch. There ia a
deed for land for a site for the Patux-
ent Church dated 1704, but nothing to
indicate that that was the first church,
Mr. Mellvain save that the Eastern
branch church was established in 1719
and some man who read that state-
ment in Mr., Mellvain's book marked
it, "Wrong, 1744." Mr. Mcllvain makes
no mention of the Cabin John Church,
the inference being that he had found
no record of its origin. The neighbor-

hood of Bladensburg was well get-
tled before grants to wild land in
Montgomery county were issued by.

the propristary of Maryland. The ear-
llest land patent covering land in the
immediate vicinity of the Presbyte-
rian Church was issued in 1729, whieh
would indicate that not many Presby-
terian settler, were there in 1716. There
were earlier patents west of Rock
(C'reek, and the Rambler finds three of
earlier date covering land west of
where the Presbyterian Church stood.
One was a patent to Archibald Edmon-
ston in 1717, called Cool Spring Level,
and one war a tract ndjoining it pat-
entfed in 1717 to James Moore, called
Archibald's Lot. Some of the grants
for land through which the Rockvilla
pike rung were made as early as 1688,
among them being l.eeke Forest, pat-
ented to Henry Dulany, and in 168% a
grant was made to William Joseph of
a tract which he named “Hermitage."
So it impresses the Rambler as rea-
senable that the Preabyterians In the
Bladensburg neighborhood built a
church before those in the Cabin John

neighborhood. Bul, of course, he may
bhe wrong.
Now for the account in The Star.

It sgays in one place that James Hunt
was the first pastor, and in another
that it was founded by John Orme,
pastor of the Patuxent Church., It
says that Mr. Hunt “died June 2, 1787,
according to the inscription on the
headstone at his grave.” The date of
4 man's death on his headstone is
generally right, and it ia uzual for a

man’'s headstone to wstand at his
grave. Bul thir particular head-
&tone is inscribed “June 2, 1793." The

tombstone says he died at the age of
Then he was born In
1732 or thereabouts, and if he came
to Cabin John Church as pastor at
the age of twenty-one, which is high=
ly improbable, that would Ax the be-
ginning of his pastorate there as 1758,
The information given to the reporter
was that “a memorial stone marking
the site of old Cabin John Church on
Cabin John creek, about three miles
wert of Bethesda, is to be dedicated,”
ete. The marker stunds seven miles
west of Bethesdu, where Wisconsin
avenue pasres through it, and instead
of being "on" Cabin John creek It is
somewhat more Lthan two miles west
of the creek.

Sometime the Rambler is going out
to see the Nev. Parke I’. Flournoy of
old Belhesda Presbyterian Church
about this matter. Bethesda Church
is on the weut side of the Rockville
plke north of the Hamilton farm,
south of the Corby farm and about &
mile wert by & trifie north of the
electric station at Alta Vista, The
Rambler hopes to get at the facts
about ‘the 1716 church of Cabin
John,” 'There must he xome good old
Presbyterians in Montgomery county
ar Prince tieorges who know the
#tory of thix interesting church.

Artistic Wives.

(‘]CRAI-I)].\'F} FARRAR rald at &
A tea:

“(3irls who have gone in for the arts,
failed and then married as a last re-
sort nuke poor wives,

“1 know a girl who married after
falling in music, 1t in reported that
her husband said one night In his
Cups:

“‘My wife used to play the gultar
Xow she—hic- picks on me.”
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